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1 For purposes of this investigation, ‘‘malleable 
iron pipe fittings’’ consists of malleable iron pipe 
and tube fittings, other than grooved fittings.

1 The record is defined in sec. 207.2(f) of the 
Commission’s Rules of Practice and Procedure (19 
CFR § 207.2(f)).

preliminary phase antidumping 
investigation No. 731–TA–1021 
(Preliminary) under section 733(a) of the 
Tariff Act of 1930 (19 U.S.C. 1673b(a)) 
(the Act) to determine whether there is 
a reasonable indication that an industry 
in the United States is materially 
injured or threatened with material 
injury, or the establishment of an 
industry in the United States is 
materially retarded, by reason of 
imports from China of malleable iron 
pipe fittings,1 provided for in 
subheading 7307.19.90 of the 
Harmonized Tariff Schedule of the 
United States, that are alleged to be sold 
in the United States at less than fair 
value. Unless the Department of 
Commerce extends the time for 
initiation pursuant to section 
732(c)(1)(B) of the Act (19 U.S.C. 
1673a(c)(1)(B)), the Commission must 
reach a preliminary determination in 
antidumping investigations in 45 days, 
or in this case by December 16, 2002. 
The Commission’s views are due at 
Commerce within five business days 
thereafter, or by December 23, 2002. For 
further information concerning the 
conduct of this investigation and rules 
of general application, consult the 
Commission’s Rules of Practice and 
Procedure, part 201, subparts A through 
E (19 CFR part 201), and part 207, 
subparts A and B (19 CFR part 207).
EFFECTIVE DATE: October 30, 2002.
FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: 
Christopher Cassise (202–708–5408), 
Office of Investigations, U.S. 
International Trade Commission, 500 E 
Street SW., Washington, DC 20436. 
Hearing-impaired persons can obtain 
information on this matter by contacting 
the Commission’s TDD terminal on 202–
205–1810. Persons with mobility 
impairments who will need special 
assistance in gaining access to the 
Commission should contact the Office 
of the Secretary at 202–205–2000. 
General information concerning the 
Commission may also be obtained by 
accessing its internet server (http://
www.usitc.gov). The public record for 
this investigation may be viewed on the 
Commission’s electronic docket (EDIS–
ON–LINE) at http://dockets.usitc.gov/
eol/public.
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: 

Background.—This investigation is 
being instituted in response to a petition 
filed on October 30, 2002, by Anvil 
International, Inc., Portsmouth, NH, and 
Ward Manufacturing, Inc., Blossburg, 
PA. 

Participation in the investigation and 
public service list.—Persons (other than 
petitioners) wishing to participate in the 
investigation as parties must file an 
entry of appearance with the Secretary 
to the Commission, as provided in 
sections 201.11 and 207.10 of the 
Commission’s rules, not later than seven 
days after publication of this notice in 
the Federal Register. Industrial users 
and (if the merchandise under 
investigation is sold at the retail level) 
representative consumer organizations 
have the right to appear as parties in 
Commission antidumping 
investigations. The Secretary will 
prepare a public service list containing 
the names and addresses of all persons, 
or their representatives, who are parties 
to this investigation upon the expiration 
of the period for filing entries of 
appearance. 

Limited disclosure of business 
proprietary information (BPI) under an 
administrative protective order (APO) 
and BPI service list.—Pursuant to 
section 207.7(a) of the Commission’s 
rules, the Secretary will make BPI 
gathered in this investigation available 
to authorized applicants representing 
interested parties (as defined in 19 
U.S.C. 1677(9)) who are parties to the 
investigation under the APO issued in 
the investigation, provided that the 
application is made not later than seven 
days after the publication of this notice 
in the Federal Register. A separate 
service list will be maintained by the 
Secretary for those parties authorized to 
receive BPI under the APO. 

Conference.—The Commission’s 
Director of Operations has scheduled a 
conference in connection with this 
investigation for 9:30 a.m. on November 
20, 2002, at the U.S. International Trade 
Commission Building, 500 E Street SW., 
Washington, DC. Parties wishing to 
participate in the conference should 
contact Christopher Cassise (202–708–
5408) not later than November 15, 2002, 
to arrange for their appearance. Parties 
in support of the imposition of 
antidumping duties in this investigation 
and parties in opposition to the 
imposition of such duties will each be 
collectively allocated one hour within 
which to make an oral presentation at 
the conference. A nonparty who has 
testimony that may aid the 
Commission’s deliberations may request 
permission to present a short statement 
at the conference. 

Written submissions.—As provided in 
sections 201.8 and 207.15 of the 
Commission’s rules, any person may 
submit to the Commission on or before 
November 25, 2002, a written brief 
containing information and arguments 
pertinent to the subject matter of the 

investigation. Parties may file written 
testimony in connection with their 
presentation at the conference no later 
than three days before the conference. If 
briefs or written testimony contain BPI, 
they must conform with the 
requirements of sections 201.6, 207.3, 
and 207.7 of the Commission’s rules. 
The Commission’s rules do not 
authorize filing of submissions with the 
Secretary by facsimile or electronic 
means. 

In accordance with sections 201.16(c) 
and 207.3 of the rules, each document 
filed by a party to the investigation must 
be served on all other parties to the 
investigation (as identified by either the 
public or BPI service list), and a 
certificate of service must be timely 
filed. The Secretary will not accept a 
document for filing without a certificate 
of service.

Authority: This investigation is being 
conducted under authority of title VII of the 
Tariff Act of 1930; this notice is published 
pursuant to section 207.12 of the 
Commission’s rules.

By order of the Commission.
Issued: November 1, 2002. 

Marilyn R. Abbott, 
Secretary to the Commission.
[FR Doc. 02–28221 Filed 11–5–02; 8:45 am] 
BILLING CODE 7020–02–P

INTERNATIONAL TRADE 
COMMISSION 

[Investigations Nos. 701–TA–426 and 731–
TA–984–985 (Final)] 

Sulfanilic Acid From Hungary and 
Portugal 

Determinations 

On the basis of the record 1 developed 
in the subject investigations, the United 
States International Trade Commission 
determines, pursuant to sections 705(b) 
and 735(b) of the Tariff Act of 1930 (19 
U.S.C. 1671d(b) and 1673d(b)) (the Act), 
that an industry in the United States is 
materially injured by reason of imports 
from Hungary of sulfanilic acid, 
provided for in subheadings 2921.42.22 
and 2921.42.90 of the Harmonized tariff 
Schedule of the United States, that have 
been found by the Department of 
Commerce to be subsidized by the 
Government of Hungary, and by reason 
of imports of sulfanilic acid from 
Hungary and Portugal that have been 
found by the Department of Commerce 
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2 A revised final phase schedule was published in 
the Federal Register of June 6, 2002 (67 FR 39041).

to be sold in the United States at less 
than fair value (LTFV).

Background 
The Commission instituted these 

investigations effective September 28, 
2001, following receipt of a petition 
filed with the Commission and 
Commerce by National Ford Chemical 
Co. of Fort Mill, SC. The final phase of 
the investigations was scheduled by the 
Commission following notification of 
preliminary determinations by 
Commerce that imports of sulfanilic 
acid from Hungary were being 
subsidized within the meaning of 
section 703(b) of the Act (19 U.S.C. 
1671b(b)) and that imports of sulfanilic 
acid from Hungary and Portugal were 
being sold at LTFV within the meaning 
of section 733(b) of the Act (19 U.S.C. 
§ 1673b(b)). Notice of the scheduling of 
the final phase of the Commission’s 
investigations and of a public hearing to 
be held in connection therewith was 
given by posting copies of the notice in 
the Office of the Secretary, U.S. 
International Trade Commission, 
Washington, DC, and by publishing the 
notice in the Federal Register of May 
21, 2002 (67 FR 35832).2 The hearing 
was held in Washington, DC, on 
September 24, 2002, and all person who 
requested the opportunity were 
permitted to appear in person or by 
counsel.

The Commission transmitted its 
determination in these investigations to 
the Secretary of Commerce on 
November 1, 2002. The views of the 
Commission are contained in USITC 
Publication 3554 (November 2002), 
entitled Sulfanilic Acid from Hungary 
and Portugal: Investigations Nos. 701–
TA–426 and 731–TA–984–985 (Final).

Issued: November 1, 2002.
By order of the Commission. 

Marilyn R. Abbott, 
Secretary to the Commission.
[FR Doc. 02–28220 Filed 11–5–02; 8:45 am] 
BILLING CODE 7020–02–P

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

Notice of Lodging of Consent Decree 
and Stipulation of Settlement and 
Order of Dismissal Under the 
Comprehensive Environmental 
Response, Compensation and Liability 
Act 

Notice is hereby given that on October 
15, 2002, two proposed settlement 
agreements were lodged with the United 
District Court of Northern District of 

Indiana in the matter of United States v. 
American Standard, Inc. et al., Civil No. 
3:01CV0513RM. One proposed 
agreement is titled ‘‘Consent Decree 
with Group Defendants and Other 
Potentially Responsible Persons for 
Recovery of Past Response Costs’’ 
(‘‘Consent Decree’’) and the other is 
titled ‘‘Stipulation of Settlement and 
Order of Dismissal Between United 
States and Exide Corporation’’ 
(‘‘Stipulation of Settlement’’). 

In its Complaint, the United States 
seeks to recover response costs incurred 
by the United States in connection with 
the Four County Landfill Site in Fulton 
County, Indiana (the ‘‘Site’’). The 
complaint alleges that the United States 
undertook response actions as a result of 
releases or threatened releases of 
hazardous substances at the Site, and 
that the defendants named in the 
complaint were jointly and severally 
liable for the costs of such response 
actions. 

Under the proposed Consent Decree, 
a group of ten defendants (along with 28 
additional parties who allegedly 
contributed hazardous wastes to the 
Site) will pay $213,915 to the Hazardous 
Substances Superfund as partial 
reimbursement of response costs that 
the United States paid in connection 
with the Site through April 30, 2002. 
Under the proposed Stipulation of 
Settlement, Exide has agreed to the 
entry of judgment against it for $35,405 
in settlement of the United States’ 
claims for recovery of response cost that 
the United States paid in connection 
with the Site through May 2, 2002. 
Exide filed a voluntary petition for 
bankruptcy in the United States 
Bankruptcy Court for the District of 
Delaware on April 15, 2000, which was 
docketed as In Re Exide Technologies, et 
al., Bankruptcy No 02–11125. Under the 
terms of the Stipulation of Settlement, 
the United States shall be allowed a 
general unsecured claim in the 
bankruptcy proceeding for the agreed 
judgment amount of $35,405. Only the 
amount of cash received by 
Environmental Protection Agency 
(‘‘EPA’’) on its general unsecured claim 
shall be credited by EPA to the 
Hazardous Substance Superfund. 

The Department of Justice will 
receive, for a period of thirty (30) days 
from the date of this publication, 
comments relating to the proposed 
Consent Decree and the proposed 
Stipulation of Settlement. Comments 
should be addressed to the Assistant 
Attorney General, Environmental and 
Natural Resources Division, PO Box 
7611, U.S. Department of Justice, 
Washington, DC 20044–7611, and 
should refer to United States v. 

American Standard, Inc., et al., D.J. Ref. 
90–11–3–07510. 

The proposed Consent Decree and the 
proposed Stipulation of Settlement may 
be examined at the Office of the United 
States Attorney, 204 S. Main Street, 
South Bend, Indiana, 46601, and at U.S. 
EPA Region 5, 77 West Jackson 
Boulevard, Chicago, Illinois, 60604. A 
copy of the proposed Consent Decree, 
the proposed Stipulation of Settlement, 
or both, may also be obtained by mail 
from the Consent Decree Library, P.O. 
Box 7611, U.S. Department of Justice, 
Washington, DC 20044–7611 or by 
faxing a request to Tonia Fleetwood, fax 
no. (202) 514–0097, phone confirmation 
number (202) 514–1547. In requesting a 
copy of the Consent Decree, please 
enclose a check in the amount of $7.25 
(25 cents per page reproduction cost) 
payable to the U.S. Treasury. In 
requesting a copy of the Stipulation of 
Settlement, please enclose a check of 
$5.75 (25 cents per page) payable to the 
U.S. Treasury.

William D. Brighton, 
Assistant Chief, Environmental Enforcement 
Section, Environment and Natural Resources 
Division.
[FR Doc. 02–28239 Filed 11–5–02; 8:45 am] 
BILLING CODE 4410–15–M

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

Notice of Lodging of Consent Decree 
Under the Clean Air Act and the 
Emergency Planning and Community 
Right-To-Know Act 

Under 28 CFR 50.7, notice is hereby 
given that on October 21, 2002, a 
proposed Consent Decree (‘‘Consent 
Decree’’) in United States v. Color 
Communications, Inc., Civil Action No. 
99 C 4489, was lodged with the United 
States District Court for the Northern 
District of Illinois. 

The United States’ complaint in this 
action asserts claims against Color 
Communications, Inc. (‘‘CCI’’) for 
injunctive relief and civil penalties for 
violations of the Clean Air Act, 42 
U.S.C. 7401 et seq. (‘‘CAA’’), and 
applicable provisions of a Federal 
Implementation Plan and a State 
Implementation Plan governing sources 
that emit volatile organic materials to 
the ambient air within the Chicago 
Metropolitan Area Ozone Non 
Attainment Area. The complaint also 
alleges that CCI failed to comply with 
the reporting requirements of the 
Emergency Planning and Community 
Right-to-Know Act, 42 U.S.C. 11001 et 
seq. (‘‘EPCRA’’) The State of Illinois 
intervened as a plaintiff in this action 
and asserted additional claims against 
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